
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Central Bedfordshire 
Council 
Priory House 
Monks Walk 
Chicksands,  
Shefford SG17 5TQ 

 
  

  
please ask for Ellen Heaney 

direct line 0300 300 4040 
date 10 March 2010 

 
NOTICE OF MEETING 

 
 

BUSINESS TRANSFORMATION OVERVIEW & SCRUTINY 
COMMITTEE 

 
 

Date & Time 
Monday, 22 March 2010 at 10.00 a.m. 

 
Venue at 

Room 15, Priory House, Monks Walk, Shefford 
 
 

 
Richard Carr 
Chief Executive 

 
To:     The Chairman and Members of the BUSINESS TRANSFORMATION OVERVIEW 
& SCRUTINY COMMITTEE: 
 

Cllrs M Gibson (Chairman), R W Johnstone (Vice-Chairman), R A Baker, 
Mrs A Barker, J A E Clarke, D J Hopkin, J G Jamieson, J Murray and 
Ms J Nunn 
 

 
[Named Substitutes: 
 
Cllrs: P N Aldis, R D Berry, J Kane, Mrs J G Lawrence and J N Young] 

 
 

All other Members of the Council - on request 
 
 

MEMBERS OF THE PRESS AND PUBLIC ARE WELCOME TO ATTEND THIS 
MEETING 

 



 

AGENDA 

 
 
1. APOLOGIES FOR ABSENCE 
  

Apologies for absence and notification of substitute members 
 

2. CHAIRMAN'S ANNOUNCEMENTS AND COMMUNICATIONS 
  

If any 
 

3. MINUTES 
  

To approve as a correct record the Minutes of the meeting of this Committee 
held on 22 February 2010.  
 
 

4. MEMBERS' INTERESTS 
  

To receive from Members declarations and the nature thereof in relation to:- 
 
(a)  Personal Interests in any Agenda item 

 
(b)  Personal and Prejudicial Interests in any Agenda item 

 
(c)  Any political whip in relation to any agenda item 

 
 
 
 

5. PETITIONS 
  

To receive petitions in accordance with the scheme of public participation set 
out in Annex 2 in Part 4 of the Constitution. 
 
 

6. DISCLOSURE OF EXEMPT INFORMATION 
  

To consider proposals, if any, to deal with any item likely to involve disclosure 
of exempt information as defined in the relevant paragraph(s) of Part I of 
Schedule 12A of the Local Government Act 1972 prior to the exclusion of the 
press and public. 
 
 
 
 
 
 



 
Reports/Presentations 

 

Item Subject Page Nos. 

7 Total Place 
To receive a presentation regarding the proposed 
governance arrangements for the Total Place initiative 
and the lessons learned from the pilot in terms of 
accelerating the Council’s own efficiency agenda. 
 
 

*   

8 Web Development Strategy 
To receive and consider the draft Strategy approved by 
the Web Development Task Force.  
 
 

*  11 - 52 

 



This page is intentionally left blank



CENTRAL BEDFORDSHIRE COUNCIL 
 
 

At a meeting of the BUSINESS TRANSFORMATION OVERVIEW & SCRUTINY 
COMMITTEE held at Room 15, Priory House, Monks Walk, Shefford on Monday, 22 
February 2010 

 
PRESENT 

 
Cllr M Gibson (Chairman) 

 
 

Cllr R A Baker 
Mrs A Barker 
J A E Clarke 
 

Cllr D J Hopkin 
J G Jamieson 
J Murray 
 

 
Apologies for Absence: Cllr R W Johnstone 

Ms J Nunn 
 

 
Substitutes: Cllr P N Aldis (In place of Ms J Nunn) 

 
 

Members in Attendance: Cllr Mrs J G Lawrence 
 

 
Officers in Attendance: Mr B Carter Overview & Scrutiny Manager 

 
 Mr R Ellis Director of Business Transformation, 

CBC 
 Mr P Frazer Head of Partnerships & Community 

Engagement 
 Mrs E Heaney Temporary Democratic Services 

Officer 
 Mr C Jones Assistant Director Business 

Transformation & Customer 
Services 

 Mr I Porter Assistant Director Policy, 
Partnerships & Performance 

 Mrs G Stanton Assistant Director Communications 
 

BT/09/74   Chairman's Announcements and Communications  
 
A ten minute adjournment was announced due to the inclement weather. The 
meeting resumed at 10:10am.  

 
BT/09/75   Minutes  

 
RESOLVED: 
 
That the minutes of the meeting of the Business Transformation 
Overview and Scrutiny Committee held on 25 January 2010 be confirmed 
and signed by the Chairman as a correct record.  

 

Agenda Item 3
Page 5



BTOSC 
-  

22.02.10 

Page 2  
 

 

BT/09/76   Members' Interests  
 
No interests were declared.  
 

BT/09/77   Petitions  
 
The Chairman announced that no petitions had been received.  

 
BT/09/78   Questions, Statements or Deputations  

 
The Chairman announced that no questions, statements or deputations had 
been received. 

 
BT/09/79   Call-In  

 
The Chairman announced that no call-ins had been referred to this committee.  

 
BT/09/80   Requested Items  

 
The Chairman announced that no requested items had been received.  

 
BT/09/81   Remodelling of Customer Services  

 
Members considered the report of the Portfolio Holder for Business 
Transformation and Director of Business Transformation. The report focussed 
on six key programmes of activity where the Council could work closely with 
partners in the public sector to deliver joined-up services.  
 
The Portfolio Holder for Business Transformation emphasised that each of 
these programmes sought either to reduce costs or provide improved services 
at the same cost and would ensure that the Council offered customers a variety 
of ways to access services.  
 
While acknowledging that the report had come to the Committee at an early 
stage Members raised some concerns at the lack of financial detail and 
requested that a business case for each of the 6 key programmes of activity 
would come back to them to give them an overview of the costs and benefits of 
the programmes.  
 
In response to a question the Committee was advised that each of the six 
programmes could stand alone and that a delay or problem in one programme 
would not impact on the others, and each programme would allow savings or 
improvements to be realised, with the greatest impact being if all six 
programmes were operating.  
 
Members were concerned that so many telephone numbers were published for 
Council services and asked whether it would be possible to reduce this 
number. It was noted that the intention was to reduce over 50 public telephone 
numbers  to 7 phone numbers, each one going through to staff trained to 
handle calls in that area. It would not be possible for all customer services 
officers to be trained to handle enquiries in all of the areas of the Council’s 

Agenda Item 3
Page 6



BTOSC 
-  

22.02.10 

Page 3  
 

 

business at a high level. If staff were to add value rather than simply 
transferring calls then enquiries needed to be directed to those best equipped 
to help them.  
 
Whilst it was noted that an automated system where members of the public 
selected the services they needed would be the cheapest way to manage this 
but Members nonetheless were opposed to delivering the service in this way.  
 
RESOLVED: 
 

1. That the 6 key programmes of activity outlined in the report be 
endorsed in principle subject to the Executive ensuring that each 
programme of activity delivers either the same service at reduced 
cost or a better service at the same cost.  

 
2. That a business case for each key programme of activity be 

brought back to the Committee at the earliest opportunity.  
 

3. That, should the remodelling of customer services result in vacant 
posts, recruitment should be delayed until such time as the 
migration of further services occurs.  

 
BT/09/82   Communications Strategy  

 
Members considered the report of the Assistant Director of Communications, 
setting out the Council’s Communication Strategy. It was noted that 
communications would take an increasingly important role in influencing how 
people perceive the authority. The strategy set out six key objectives to reach 
the Local Government Association’s “Gold Standard” for corporate 
communications and set out ways for the department to train and support 
officers across the authority to send out cohesive and effective messages.  
 
Members noted that there was no core funding available for the Council’s 
publication, News Central, next financial year and expressed their support for 
the publication as a key communication tool. The Committee therefore 
recommends that the Executive identify a funding source for this so that it 
would not be entirely dependant on advertising revenue.  
 
Members were concerned that point 2 (Strategic Aim) focused on enhancing 
and safeguarding the Council’s reputation and believed this sent the wrong 
message to the Council’s customers. It was Members’ opinion that the 
strategy’s overriding aim should be about improving customer satisfaction and 
therefore requested the strategy’s aim be redrafted accordingly. Members were 
also concerned that on some occasions partner organisations, when 
undertaking work on the Council’s behalf, had sent letters using their own 
headed paper rather than Central Bedfordshire branded paper. 
 
 
 
 

Agenda Item 3
Page 7



BTOSC 
-  

22.02.10 

Page 4  
 

 

Members discussed whether it was appropriate for the Corporate 
Communication team to assist on internal communication projects or whether it 
should be the sole responsibility of managers to cascade key messages.  
 
RESOLVED: 
 

1. That the Committee endorses the draft strategy subject to 
amendment to its strategic aim to better reflect the need to improve 
customer satisfaction (as outlined in the preamble above). 

 
2. That the Committee supports the use of News Central as a key 

communications tool and requests the Executive to consider the 
provision of core funding for its publication in the new financial 
year and beyond.   

 
BT/09/83   Quarter 3 Performance Report  

 
The Chairman announced that Agenda Items 11 and 12 would be taken 
together after a ten minute comfort break. The committee adjourned at 11:50 
and reconvened at 12 noon.  
 
The Chairman asked for an update on the Information Technology problems 
last week and how this could impact Quarter 4 performance data.  
 
The Director of Business Transformation briefed members on the causes of the 
IT system failure and the recovery work which had been undertaken. Details 
were given about specific service areas and when their systems would be fully 
functional.  
 
Members then considered together the reports on Quarter 3 Performance and 
Quarter 3 Budget Management.  
 
A Member asked a question relating to Appendix A (overall position by 
Directorate) of the budget management report regarding the purpose of the 
budget line headed “Schools only”. Members agreed to receive an explanation 
by email following the meeting.  
 
Members asked for more details relating to the level of Bad debt. The Director 
of Business Transformation explained that the Bad Debt provision had been 
reduced a few months ago; this had recently been reviewed and restored to its 
previous level. Bad Debts had increased in a number of local authorities during 
the current economic recession.  
 
RESOLVED: 
 

1. That the Committee notes the Quarter 3 Performance Report.  
2. That the Committee notes the Quarter 3 Budget Management 

Report  
 
 
 

Agenda Item 3
Page 8



BTOSC 
-  

22.02.10 

Page 5  
 

 

BT/09/84   Quarter 3 Budget Management Report  
 
The Committee considered this report at the previous item, minute BT/09/84 
refers.  
 

BT/09/85   Task Force Report on enabling Councillors to be leaders in and for their 
communities  
 
Members considered the report of the Director of Business Transformation. 
The report set out the five key principles of the Local Strategic Partnership, the 
second of which “Enabling Councillors to be leaders in and for their 
communities” had been considered by a Task Force. The Task Force had 
recommended eight key activities around this principle and produced a Delivery 
Plan to address each.  
 

• Provide councillors with relevant ward-based intelligence, information 
and customer insight 

• Provide individual Councillor budgets 
• Offer support for scrutiny, Councillor Call for Action and response to 

petitions 
• Establish greater role and involvement in partnerships 
• Establish links with Third Sector organisations 
• Procure a Case Management system for Councillors 
• Provide Member Development of community engagement skills 
• Provide dedicated officer support.  

 
The Committee welcomed the Delivery Plan and noted that due to budget 
constraints it would not be possible to implement all of the recommendation 
immediately, but they were a valuable set of desirable outcomes. In the 
discussion Members expressed some concerns that they were not always 
advised when officers would be visiting or working in their wards. The Assistant 
Director of Communications agreed to remind managers of their duty to liaise 
with Members.  
 
RESOLVED:  
 
That the Delivery Plan be approved for submission to the Executive at its 
meeting on 4 May 2010.  

 
BT/09/86   Work Programme 2009 - 2010  

 
RESOLVED: 
 
That the work programme be noted.  
 
(Note: The meeting commenced at 10.10 a.m. and concluded at 12.45 p.m.) 
 

Agenda Item 3
Page 9



Page 10

This page is intentionally left blank



 
 
 
Meeting: Business Transformation Overview and Scrutiny Committee 

Date: 22nd March 2010 

Subject: Web Development Strategy 

Report of: Assistant Director, Communications 

Summary: To seek input and feedback to the draft strategy. 
 

 
 
Contact Officer: Georgina Stanton, Assistant Director, Communications 

Public/Exempt: Public 

Wards Affected: All 

Function of: Executive 

CORPORATE IMPLICATIONS 

Council Priorities: 
The development of a comprehensive web strategy is fundamental to the transformation 
of the Council’s services. The significant cost savings that can be unlocked by moving 
services online will become essential for the delivery of the corporate strategy.  
In particular Transformation of Learning, Personalisation in Social Care, The Customer 
Services Strategy and The Community Engagement Strategy. 
 
Financial: 

It is estimated that savings of up to £2.5m over 5 years can be unlocked by using the 
online channel more effectively. These savings will be achieved by: 

• Encouraging customers to change their choice of contact channel with the 
Council (e.g. from telephone/face-to-face visits to web), and reducing the need 
for them to do so repeatedly  

• Integration of front and back office processes so that customers enquiries can be 
resolved at their first point of contact with us, through the lowest cost channel, 
rather than having to be passed on to various officers. 

• Reduced marketing and recruitment costs 
• More efficient work practices using web tools 
• Reducing the cost to process payments (for example – reducing cheque 

payments in favour of electronic online payments) 
 
Implementation of the strategy requires an investment of £550,000 over 2 years with 
recurring costs of £45,000 per annum. 
Legal: 

All web based activity conducted by the authority and proposed within this plan will be 
consistent with the statutory code of conduct for local government.  
Risk Management: 

Agenda Item 8
Page 11



Implementation of this strategy will lead to more transparent workflow and 
management information relating to customer transactions providing better information 
for management decisions and audit trails when required. 
Social networking tools will be managed centrally reducing the potential risk to 
reputation management from the use of this new media. 
The digital inclusion element of the strategy acknowledges the need to make access 
to online resources easier for those who are not current users of the internet. 
Staffing (including Trades Unions): 
  
The strategy will support the need for smarter work practices as workforce reductions 
are made. 
The introduction of tighter governance around web practices will clarify roles and 
responsibilities across the organisation for all web activity. 
Equalities/Human Rights: 

Making a broad range of services available online will enhance equality of access in 
terms of when and where customers access the Council services.  
The digital inclusion aspect of the strategy will seek to give greater equality of access 
to people currently not using the internet.  
 
Community Safety: 

N/A 
 
Sustainability: 

The strategy will support the key messages of the Sustainability Strategy making it 
easy for customers to get information about and apply for waste services, submit, 
review and comment on planning applications, participate in consultations on major 
development projects and simply tell the Council about pot holes and environmental 
issues.   
 
 

 
RECOMMENDATION(S): 

1. That the Business Transformation Overview and Scrutiny Committee 
review the draft strategy and give feedback on:  
 

 (a) The broad objectives, invest to save targets and approach 
 

 (b) The core strands of activity referred to as the 5 pillars of the 
strategy 
 

 
 
Background Information 
 
1 
 

In the advent of transition, work was done to rapidly develop a website for the 
new authority. In development terms, the site was brought together over a ten 
week period in early 2009. The resulting site was essentially a combination of 
the information held by legacy authorities, albeit that some consistent branding 
had been applied. 

Agenda Item 8
Page 12



2 
 

During 2009, a range of enhancements to the existing site were made, 
including the development of a search facility, inclusion of an A-Z and 
refinement of the home page. However, it was acknowledged in September 
2009 that a more fundamental improvement programme for the web was 
required and a Web Development Team was initiated to explore the potential 
of a Web Development Strategy 

Research and Engagement 
3 
 

Building on existing research data, consultation has been undertaken with a 
range of internal experts to understand their requirements and ideas for the 
future website. 

4 
 

The success of the project will be dependent on how the website is used by 
customers and a combination of approaches have been used to gain insight 
into what customers want, expect and need from the Council’s strategy. 

5 At the outset of the project a Web Task Force was established with members 
from the Business Transformation Overview and Scrutiny Committee and 
other committees. The Web Task Force influenced the customer and 
engagement element of the strategy that led to greater member involvement. 
This included individual member input and an open session to which all 
members were invited. At the final meeting of the Overview and Scrutiny Web 
Task Force on 1st March 2010 the draft strategy was approved. 

Strategic Approach 
 
6 The strategic objectives are to: 

• Unlock significant organisational wide savings. 
• Give customers a better service. 
Make community engagement easy and relevant. 

7 It is proposed that the structure for the delivery of our objectives will be 
through five key areas of work referred to as the pillars of the strategy 
 

 (a) 
 

Getting the basics right – in order to build a solid foundation for the 
strategy, the navigational structure, systems and governance need to 
be aligned with our objectives 

 (b) 
 

Doing it better online – exploiting the opportunity to transfer services 
online to make processes better, simpler and cheaper 

 (c) 
 

Personalising – tailoring services more to customer needs particularly 
based on postcode and life stage 

 (d) Getting involved in online conversations - exploiting social media 
such as Facebook and Twitter for effective, meaningful and low cost 
communications  

 (e) Bridging the digital divide – nationally 30% of the population do not 
have access to or use the internet. This strategy will make 
recommendations on how identified non-internet users in Central 
Bedfordshire may be reached effectively.    

Conclusion and Next Steps  
 
8 
 

Following feedback and amendment from the Overview and Scrutiny 
Committee it is anticipated that the strategy will be presented to the Executive 
for consideration on 6th April 2010  

 
 
Appendices: 
Appendix A – Draft Web Development Strategy 
 

Agenda Item 8
Page 13



Background Papers: (open to public inspection) 
Ipsos MORI research findings – Overview and Scrutiny Committee papers January 
2010 
The Mosaic customer data compiled as part of the Central Bedfordshire and Luton Total 
Place 
Location of papers: Priory House, Chicksands 

 

Agenda Item 8
Page 14



100310_Draft_Web_ Development_ Strategy_v6 

 1 

 

 

 

 

Central Bedfordshire Council 

Draft Web Development Strategy  

April 2010 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Agenda Item 8
Page 15



100310_Draft_Web_ Development_ Strategy_v6 

 2 

Author: Ellie Louis 

Web Manager: Alan Ferguson 

Project Sponsor: Georgina Stanton

Agenda Item 8
Page 16



100310_Draft_Web_ Development_ Strategy_v6 

 3 

Contents 

Executive Summary  
 
Full Report 
1.Introduction 
2.Customer Insight Headlines 

2.1 MOSAIC 
       2.2 MORI 

2.3 Telephone call data 
2.4 Frontline staff interviews 
2.5 Face to face contacts 
2.6 Website statistics 
2.7 Customer interviews 

3.Organisational Insight Headlines 
3.1 Navigation and content 
3.2 Systems and processes 
3.3 Social media 

4.Best Practice 
4.1 Recommended benchmark websites 

5.National Drivers 
6.Recommendations 

6.1 Getting the basics right 
6.2 Personalising 
6.3 Getting involved in the online conversation 
6.4 Doing it better online 
6.5 Bridging the digital divide 

7.The Financial Case Invest to Save 
  7.1 Assumptions 
  7.2  Identified savings 
  7.3 Investment 
  7.4 Recurring costs 
  7.5 Summary 
8.The Project Management Case 
9.Measures of Success 

Agenda Item 8
Page 17



100310_Draft_Web_ Development_ Strategy_v6 

 4 

The Web Development Strategy Executive Summary 
 
The development of a comprehensive web strategy is fundamental to the 
transformation of the Council’s services. The significant cost savings that can 
be unlocked by moving services online will become essential for the delivery 
of the corporate strategy.  
 
This web strategy outlines how a cohesive approach to the Council’s online 
presence will save money, give customers a better service and community 
engagement, and support Councillors as leaders of place. 
 
These 3 objectives will be achieved by: 
 
1. Unlocking significant organisation wide cost savings 
It is estimated that savings of up to £2.5m over a 5 year period can be 
unlocked by using the online channel more effectively. These savings will be 
achieved by: 

• Encouraging customers to change their choice of contact channel with 
the Council (e.g. from telephone/face-to-face visits to web), and 
reducing the need for them to do so repeatedly  

• Integration of front and back office processes so that customers 
enquiries can be resolved at their first point of contact with us, through 
the lowest cost channel, rather than having to be passed on to various 
officers. 

• Reduced marketing and recruitment costs 
• More efficient work practices using web tools 
• Reducing the cost to process payments (for example – reducing cheque 

payments in favour of electronic online payments) 
 

2. Giving customers a better service 
Moving services online will make self-service easy for those who are able to 
access and use the internet confidently. Identifying and understanding 
customers who do not use the internet will provide insight as to how to help 
customers who cannot self-serve. 
 
3. Making community engagement easy and relevant 
Making effective use of social media tools will make it easier for the Council 
to engage with customers.  These tools allow Councils to have conversations 
with local people about matters of policy and service.  In this way they can be 
used to facilitate greater democratic involvement. 
 
Assessment of the need 

Agenda Item 8
Page 18



100310_Draft_Web_ Development_ Strategy_v6 

 5 

The web strategy has assessed the Council’s strategic needs through a 
combination of customer and organisational insight and best practice reviews. 
Customer data has been analysed and the team have met with internal 
experts across the organisation (including both officers and Members) to 
understand their current issues and plans, and to discuss opportunities to use 
the web strategy to deliver their objectives.  
 
 
 
Key findings 
The existing website was constructed very rapidly to ensure the availability of 
a comprehensive web service on 1st April 2009. This objective was achieved 
successfully. However, the current approach to the Council’s online presence 
has limitations that prevent it from playing a fuller role in meeting the 
challenges and aspirations of the Council. 
 
To date the Council’s websites have been set up and managed individually 
and independently from each other. 
 
The Council is responsible for a number of micro sites, such as the 
Bedfordshire Schools website, the Bedfordshire Libraries website and the 
main Council website.  
 
Research conducted for the Web Development Project demonstrates that a 
more strategic approach to management of the Council’s online presence will 
create opportunities to deliver core business objectives as outlined in the 
organisation plan. In particular, the new online presence will support the 
Transformation of Learning, Personalisation in Social Care, Customer 
Services and Community Engagement Strategies.  
 
Key recommendations 
There are 5 recommended areas of focus that are referred to as the pillars of 
the strategy in this document. 
 
The 5 pillars of the strategy 

1. Getting the basics right – creating the right platform 
2. Personalising – making it easy to self serve 
3. Getting involved in the online conversation – building stronger 

engagement relationships 
4. Doing it better online – making processes better, simpler, cheaper 
5. Bridging the digital divide – digital inclusion 

 
Project scope and implementation 

Agenda Item 8
Page 19



100310_Draft_Web_ Development_ Strategy_v6 

 6 

We recommend that the scope of this strategy encompasses all online activity 
where the Council is responsible for content provided to customers and 
partners. This includes the main Central Bedfordshire Council website, and 
all existing micro sites. We also recommend working with partners to 
maximize the potential of The Bedfordshire Libraries and Schools websites.  
 
The strategy will govern the direction of all social media activity undertaken 
on behalf of the Council and identifies action that can be taken to bridge the 
existing digital divide. 
 
As the scope of this strategy is far reaching we recommend a phased 
approach to implementation balancing longer term objectives against the 
need to realise quick wins early enough to maintain momentum.  A 
prioritisation process has been established to inform the project 
implementation on this basis.  
 
It is estimated that the full implementation of this strategy will be completed 
in 2 years.   As the plan delivers in incremental steps, it is anticipated that the 
initial benefits of implementation will be realised from year 2 onwards. 
 

Agenda Item 8
Page 20



100310_Draft_Web_ Development_ Strategy_v6 

 7 

The Web Development Strategy Full Report 
 
1. Introduction 
This report draws together customer and organisational insight from research 
undertaken by the Web Development Project team. It describes how the web 
strategy can be used to make significant savings, whilst acting as a driver and 
delivery mechanism for the strategies in the organisation plan.  It makes 
recommendations for the project implementation based on a prioritisation 
schedule. 
    
2. Customer Insight Headlines 
2.1 The Mosaic customer data compiled as part of the Central Bedfordshire 
and Luton Total Place pilot project indicates that in Central Bedfordshire the 
majority of residents fit a customer profile that willingly uses or could be 
encouraged to use the internet to get information and make use of services.  
There is, however, a significant minority clustered around Dunstable and 
Flitwick, in particular, who may not have the resources or the inclination to 
use the internet in their daily lives.  
 
This strategy intends to lay out an approach that will make it easy for the 
majority of customers in the region to: 

• self serve information and services from the Council 
• be informed 
• easily participate in Council business if they wish 

 
whilst outlining an approach on inclusiveness for those who are not actively 
using the internet. 
 
2.2 The MORI residents survey (November 09) told us that for those 
customers who do use the internet there is a willingness to use the Council 
website to help themselves. However, customers are most likely to visit the 
Council site only when they have a problem to solve for themselves or on 
behalf of someone else. 
 
This strategy assumes that customers will only visit the site if they have a 
specific requirement and are unlikely to browse outside of that requirement 
unless they are intelligently sign posted to information and services that are 
timely and relevant to their personal situation.  
 
For this reason the strategy will make recommendations on navigation, 
approaches to personalisation of data, use of social media as a sign posting 
tool and overall management of content. 

Agenda Item 8
Page 21



100310_Draft_Web_ Development_ Strategy_v6 

 8 

 
2.3 Customer Services telephone call data indicates that the top reasons for 
customer calls outside of general enquiries are waste and recycling, Council 
tax and benefits, adult social care and housing.  They account for 41% of the 
750,000 calls received each year. Many of these enquiries are simple and are 
resolved at the first point of contact by call operators using existing legacy 
systems.  The web strategy will make recommendations on how call volumes 
can be reduced as it is made easier for customers to self serve these same 
enquiries online. 
 
2.4 Interviews with frontline staff revealed that there are a number of life 
stages that prompt the need for a customer to access a range of services due to 
a single event, for example when moving into the area, moving into 
retirement, being made redundant etc. Currently, staff identify the different 
services needed on behalf of the customer. The web strategy will make 
recommendations on how this expertise can be used to lead a customer 
through Council services appropriately online. 
 
The web strategy and the customer services strategy are closely aligned and 
the website will play an important part in directing calls more efficiently to 
relevant call answering teams. It will also provide a support tool to help 
customer services teams answer calls more easily. The aim, however, is to 
encourage use of the web channel wherever possible and it is intended that 
the call answering teams will proactively sign post customers to use the web 
as a future access point.  
 
2.5 Data from customer service centres shows that of the average 4,200 visits 
per month who choose to see us face to face, benefits claims, housing and 
Council tax are consistently the main reasons for visits and repeat visits. 
Several customers we spoke to in filmed interviews described how the 
benefits process required up to 4 to 5 visits before a claim could be accepted. 
This finding is corroborated by research for Total Place where it was found 
that it took an average of 9 interactions with services to process a benefits 
claim. 
 
Bus passes and waste enquiries were less significant in volume but 
consistently show as a reason for a visit. Priory House differs from other 
customer service centres in that customers regularly view plans there. 
 
The web strategy will make recommendations on how the website can be 
used to reduce the number of visits required and support the proposed self 
help approach to face to face customer service. 
 

Agenda Item 8
Page 22



100310_Draft_Web_ Development_ Strategy_v6 

 9 

2.6 Website statistics show consistent visitor numbers of around 47,000 per 
month since April last year. The only notable exception to this was in January 
2010 when visits increased to 80,000 due to people seeking information about 
school closures and bin collections. 
 
The consistent top search topics for all months outside of January are jobs and 
careers at the Council and planning applications. Outside of these two 
popular subjects there is a good spread of visits across the site. The homepage 
is by far the most visited page on the site and generally it takes more than 3 
clicks to get from this page to the information searched. 
  
Visits to the site, in the main, come from Google followed in order of volume 
by Direct Gov, Bing, BBC 3 Counties and the Bedfordshire Schools website. 
The strategy will make recommendations on how these referrers and others 
can be managed proactively to bring customers to the website when it is 
relevant to their needs. There is no evidence that partners are making high 
volumes of referrals to content on the website. 
 
The vast majority of visitors to the site use a computer; however 18,500 visits 
have been made using an Apple IPhone since April 09. This is a small 
proportion of all visits but should be noted as an emerging technology that 
the website should have some compatibility with.  
 
At present much of the website’s content is held in PDF format. In total there 
are 3,100 PDFs on the site. PDF based information is difficult to access 
through searches, can be slow to open and has been described by customers 
and staff as “clunky” to navigate. The web strategy will propose a new 
approach to the site navigation and a suite of tools that will make information 
currently stored in PDF easier to use. 
 
2.7 Interviews with customers corroborate the findings from the customer 
data sources above. In particular customers told us that they would only use 
the Council site when they had a personal need and if they were confident 
that it would do the job effectively. Confident internet users were happy to be 
signposted back to the website to do something if it made sense to do it that 
way. They were also happy to receive information by email and sms although 
the general feeling was that a letter had more gravitas and would be taken 
more seriously as a reason to act, for example, to pay overdue Council tax or 
library fines. 
 
Customer interviews were held at customer service centres and so some 
groups were over represented, in particular those on benefits. It was, 
however, notable that a high proportion of visitors, about 70% of the people 

Agenda Item 8
Page 23



100310_Draft_Web_ Development_ Strategy_v6 

 10 

we spoke to, did not use the internet in their daily lives. The reasons seemed 
to be that the internet was either too expensive or they were not convinced of 
the benefits. The presumption is that older people do not use the internet. Of 
the 3 retired customers we spoke to, 2 were very confident online.  Of the 3 
young families we spoke to none had online access at home. 
 
The national estimate for digital exclusion is 30% and 25% of those polled by 
the MORI residents’ survey did not have internet access. The web strategy 
will make some recommendations on bridging this digital divide.   
 
3. Organisational Insight 
The project gathered organisational insight through meetings with internal 
experts and Members. The purpose was to get an understanding of the 
current environment, capture ideas for improvements and identify inter-
dependencies.  
Internal experts included: 

• Representative Members from the Executive, Overview and Scrutiny, 
the back benches and the opposition party 

• Waste and recycling  
• Planning  
• Schools Admissions 
• Registrations  
• Housing  
• Benefits  
• Democratic services  
• Highways  
• Customer services  
• Consultations  
• Adult social care  
• Leisure centres  
• Libraries  
• Adult education  
• Finance  
• IT  
• Mapping  
• Business transformation 
• HR  
• Children, families and learning  
• Emergency planning  
• LSP partnerships  

 
Organisational insights headlines 

Agenda Item 8
Page 24



100310_Draft_Web_ Development_ Strategy_v6 

 11 

There was a high level of consistency of requirement across different services. 
 
3.1 Navigation and content 
Nearly every service identified the existing navigation on the website as a 
barrier to customers finding content and being able to self serve. Customer 
services, in particular, commented on the difficulty in finding information 
quickly to answer customer calls. 
 
Frustrations were also raised with the limitations and complexity of the 
content management system Tridion and the speed with which amendments 
could be made to the site when developer expertise was required.  
 
There are currently around 200 forms on the website available either in print 
off pdf documents or e-forms. Where e-forms exist workflow is managed via 
email into the service. There are no fully integrated front office to back office 
processes.   
 
From April 09 to February 10 approximately £4m worth of payments were 
made online. The bulk of the value of these online payments came from 
Council tax, rent and non –domestic rates all of which are prominently sign 
posted for payment on the website. 900 individual payments were made 
totaling £118k for other services. There are many services that do not offer an 
online payment option, for example parking fines.  
 
There is a widespread requirement to have more flexibility to reflect the 
nature of local services. In particular the services would like to make the site 
more interesting using a wider range of tools and media to express content. 
 
 
3.2 Systems and processes 
It became clear talking to services that there are a multitude of different IT 
systems in use across the organisation and in many instances extra modules 
to improve customer service are available in systems but not yet deployed. 
 
In addition the organisation is in the process of changing, consolidating and 
procuring new systems that potentially have a cross over of capability with 
the requirements of the web strategy. The web strategy will make 
recommendations on how this existing capability can be used to maximum 
potential in conjunction with the website. There may also be opportunities to 
use the website as a bridge within these processes. 
 
Many services make use of 3rd party managed systems to run their day to day 
business. In some cases the full functionality required for the website is active 

Agenda Item 8
Page 25



100310_Draft_Web_ Development_ Strategy_v6 

 12 

and available within these systems. In these cases the web strategy will make 
recommendations on how to link into and brand these systems from the 
website.  
 
In some instances processes between front and back offices are partially 
automated requiring some double entry and email exchanges.  In others there 
is almost full automation between the point of entry via customer services 
and implementation by a contractor, whilst others remain largely paper 
based. The web strategy will make recommendations on how processes can 
be simplified and integrated using the website as an entry point. 
 
Some local authorities are simplifying routes into their services through the 
use of independent, free 3rd party websites for example 
www.fixmystreet.com.  The benefit of these sites is that customers are using 
them nationally; they are simple to integrate and free. It is likely that of the 
many complimentary websites that exist, a few will become the clear route of 
choice for some customers. The web strategy will recommend which sites 
offer the greatest potential to meeting Central Bedfordshire’s requirements.  
 
3.3 Social media 
Council services identified that the web strategy could be used to most effect 
by providing a feedback loop to customers demonstrating that they have been 
listened to, to enable us better communicate with customers.  
 
Social media is being used across government and the latest figures from the 
EGov register for local authorities suggest that 35% use Twitter, 18% use 
Facebook and 16% Youtube.   
 
Facebook now has so many users that if it was a country it would be the 
fourth largest by population in the world. Users on average spend 36 minutes 
a day on the site.  Social media is becoming a way of life for some customer 
groups and it is being used to draw communities together by interest rather 
than location, share learning and expertise for free, organise events, and 
encourage democratic participation in a new way. 
 
In Central Bedfordshire there are 105,500 households. A sample of Facebook 
usage statistics, suggest that there are 14,220 active users within 10 miles of 
Bedford and 78,500 within 10 miles of Dunstable.  
 
Services across the organisation recognise this potential and are keen to 
explore how this new media can be used to improve service, better engage 
and save money. Some services have already set up Facebook and Twitter 
pages. 

Agenda Item 8
Page 26



100310_Draft_Web_ Development_ Strategy_v6 

 13 

 
There is, however, concern with the risks associated with the use of the 
unknown. This strategy will make recommendations on a cohesive approach 
to the use of social media and its governance. 
 
Social media are being used by government and lobbyists to broaden 
democratic engagement. Blogs, Twitter, Webcasts and other tools are very 
effective means for organising groups around issues, holding meaningful 
conversations about policy and encouraging involvement.  
 
In addition, independent groups such as My Society are establishing websites 
with the aim of increasing democratic transparency. They have established 
websites such as www.theyworkforyou.com and www.writetothem.com that 
provide extensive information about MPs in a simple, easily accessible 
format.   
 
A recent report from The Hansard Society states that for those people who are 
already online and active this is how they prefer to engage with government. 
49% of those already online prefer to use the internet to take part in 
democratic life, 70% agree that the internet makes it easier to participate and 
40% say that they now participate more because of the internet. It also shows 
that age is no barrier to digital engagement.  
 
This strategy makes recommendations on how social media can be used to 
support the Council’s aspirations for community involvement. 
 
4. Best Practice 
Most services were able to reference an authority that could be used as a 
benchmark for delivery of their service online. No one Council was cited as 
being excellent in multiple areas. 
 
The web strategy proposes that best practice from these authorities will be 
reflected in the design of new processes for the website. 
 
4.1 Recommended benchmark websites 
www.mycaremychoice.org.uk / (Stockport) Adult Social Care 
http://www3.lancashire.gov.uk/corporate/atoz/
mainSections/index.asp?catType=3&catID=1048
1&subcatID=10515 
 

Democratic Services 

www.bristol.gov.uk/ccm/navigation/Council-
and-democracy/consultations / 

Consultation and Social 
Media Use 

Agenda Item 8
Page 27



100310_Draft_Web_ Development_ Strategy_v6 

 14 

www.hertsdirect.org/actweb/education/admissi
ons  

Online Schools Admissions 

www.cambridgeshire.gov.uk/community/bmd / Registrations 
www.kent.gov.uk/roads_and_transport/fault_re
porting.aspx 
http://www.surreycc.gov.uk/SCCWebsite/sccws
pages.nsf/LookupWebPagesByTITLE_RTF/Rep
orting+defects+and+potholes+on+the+road?ope
ndocument  

Highways and Travel 

http://www.lincolnshire.gov.uk/  Life Events 
www.eastriding.gov.uk/myarea/cats_myarea.as
p  

Customer Services 
/Location based services 

www.somersetwaste.gov.uk/pages/index02.asp  Waste and Recycling 
www.enfield.gov.uk/info/200067/working_for_t
he_Council 
www.barnet.gov.uk/jobs-careers 

HR 

www.derbyshire.gov.uk/leisure/libraries/online
_information/  

Online Publications 

  
 
5. National Drivers 
Nationally there has been a focus on delivering public services through e-
channels for some years and many paper based services have been very 
successfully automated online. The focus now is on web 2.0 and Digital 
Britain. Broadly, this is about using online channels to deliver public services 
in a more innovative way and creating an infrastructure that will provide next 
generation internet access. 
 
In addition there is a growing recognition that digital exclusion is an issue 
that needs to be resolved as the economy becomes more digitally reliant.  
The web strategy will make recommendations on how the use of web 2.0 can 
aid innovation in the delivery of the Council’s online services.  
 
There are national drivers behind the core strategies on the organisation plan 
for example in Adult Social Care every Council must have a strategy in place 
to create universal information and advice by April 2010. The web strategy 
will play an important role in the delivery of that objective. As it will in the 
delivery of the Transformation of Learning, Personalisation in Social Care, 
Customer Services and Community Engagement Strategies. 
 
 

Agenda Item 8
Page 28



100310_Draft_Web_ Development_ Strategy_v6 
 

 15 

6. Recommendations 
 
5 pillars of the strategy 
The 5 pillars of the strategy provide areas of focus that address the requirements identified through customer and organisational 
insight. They are not necessarily sequential and in the implementation plan they may be seen as complimentary work streams for 
an overall programme.  
 

1. Getting the basics right – creating the right platform 
2. Personalising – making it easy to self serve 
3. Getting involved in the online conversation – building stronger engagement relationships 
4. Doing it better online – making processes better, simpler, cheaper 
5. Bridging the digital divide –digital inclusion 

A
genda Item

 8
P

age 29



100310_Draft_Web_ Development_ Strategy_v6 
 

 16 

6.1. Getting the basics right  
• Navigation 
• Systems 
• Governance 
• Design 

This area of focus essentially sets the right platform for the delivery of the web strategy. These are the high priority basics that need 
to be addressed first. More detail on these recommendations is outlined in the content plan and social networking plan.  
 
 Recommendation Rationale Benefit Priority 
1 
 

Restructure site navigation 
• Produce a proposed model using Direct Gov, life 

events categories and location based content  
• Establish an internal experts user group to test 

structure for fit with Council services 
• Test structure with customer group 
• Implement 

• The existing navigation 
requires too many clicks 
to retrieve information 
and access a service 

• Direct Gov is the most 
prominent government 
multiservice website with 
11m visits per month 

Simple navigation is 
key to the delivery 
of all of the strategy 
objectives 
 

HIGH 

2 Produce a link management plan for traffic coming in 
and out of the main website (NB cross over with social 
media plan) 

• Manage navigational 
routes outside of the site 
where possible 

Simple navigation is 
key to the delivery 
of all of the strategy 
objectives 

MEDIU
M 

3 
 

Identify existing systems with relationships to the 
website and agree with ICT and services the functional 
roles of the systems in relation to the website 

• Defines the ICT role of the 
website  

• Sets platform for process 
integration front office to 

Avoid duplication 
of capability within 
systems 
 

HIGH 

A
genda Item

 8
P

age 30



100310_Draft_Web_ Development_ Strategy_v6 
 

 17 

 Recommendation Rationale Benefit Priority 
back office 

4 
 

Define roles and responsibilities for the web manager, 
content owners and web development manager using 
RACI 
The main principles are: 

• content owners are up skilled to manage their 
areas via a simple to use content management 
system 

• the web manager manages homepage content, 
identifies and prioritises new development, 
manages the social networking plan and is 
accountable for the overall quality of the site  

• the web development manager advises on best 
method of implementation of new developments 
and implements to service level agreements  

• Clarifies responsibilities 
and accountabilities to 
ensure that the website is 
managed to quality and 
able to keep up with pace 
of change 

Key to delivery of 
all objectives 

HIGH 

5 
 

Establish site governance including standards, use of 
branding and the role of microsites and integrated third 
party delivery websites  

• Clarifies operational 
management 

Key to delivery of 
all objectives 

HIGH 

6 Simplify the content management system and build in 
greater flexibility around design and choice of tools. Train 
content managers in the use of the system 

• The simpler the tool the 
more likely it is to be used 
correctly 

• More flexibility will 
improve presentation and 
ease of use on the site 

Key to the delivery 
of all objectives 

HIGH 

A
genda Item

 8
P

age 31



100310_Draft_Web_ Development_ Strategy_v6 
 

 18 

 Recommendation Rationale Benefit Priority 
• Easier to manage multiple 

branding on the website 
7 
 

Enhance the design of the site to make it more 
interesting and easier to find information whilst 
maintaining accessibility standards 

• Supports self service More likely to be 
used by customers 

HIGH 

 

A
genda Item

 8
P

age 32



100310_Draft_Web_ Development_ Strategy_v6 
 

 19 

6.2. Personalising 
• Location based information 
• Life event based information 
• Recommending content 
• Login to personal data 

Four approaches to personalistaion of content were identified in the research. Information presented according to postcode, 
information presented relating to a particular life event, suggestion made in an Amazon style and secure login to modify personal 
information.  The recommendation is to focus primarily on organising content by geographical location and life event. How these 
are structured should take into account a possible future requirement for suggested content and secure logins. More detail on 
persoanlisation is outlined in the content plan.  
 
 Recommendation Rationale Benefit Priority 
1 Agree prioritised content sets based on location 

as a search criteria. Suggestions include: 
• Local reports eg potholes 
• Local recycling centres 
• Your local Councillor(s) 
• Bin collection dates 
• Local sheltered housing  
• Local crisis management/ local news 

• To organize 
information simply to 
make self service easy 

• Facilitates move to use 
of online service 

• Easy way to keep 
customers informed 

• Makes democratic 
connection to 
Councillor(s) 

• Establishes 
relationships between 
content that may be 
useful for further 
refining of 
personalization in the 

HIGH 

A
genda Item

 8
P

age 33



100310_Draft_Web_ Development_ Strategy_v6 
 

 20 

 Recommendation Rationale Benefit Priority 
future 

2 
 
 

Develop plan for use of map based information 
 
 

• Maps will be a key tool 
used for accessing 
information and 
services across the 
website  
 

• Avoids duplication of 
effort and investment 

• Ensures consistency of 
approach 

HIGH 
 

3 Agree prioritised content sets based on life 
events as a search criteria. Suggestions include: 

• Residents – eg moving into the area 
• Parents  
• Young people  
• Looking for a job 
• Interested in democracy 
• Moving into retirement 
• Dealing with debt 
• Dealing with death 

(NB this content does not necessarily feature on 
homepage navigation) 

• To organize 
information simply to 
make self service easy 

• Takes the customer to 
what is most 
important to them 

• Facilitates move to use 
of online service 

• Easy way to keep 
customers informed 

• Makes democratic 
connection to 
Councillor(s) 

• Establishes 
relationships between 
content that may be 
useful for further 
refining of 
personalization in the 
future 

MEDIUM 

4 
 

Recommending content in the Amazon model 
based on content browsed  
Future requirement to be assessed using data from 

• Further development 
based on an 
assessment of 

• Data to be used to 
inform development 
work 

LOW A
genda Item

 8
P

age 34



100310_Draft_Web_ Development_ Strategy_v6 
 

 21 

 Recommendation Rationale Benefit Priority 
web usage statistics potential value add 

5 Secure personal login to review and modify 
personal individual data held on Council back 
office systems. NB Potential for requirement to 
come from Transforming Peoples Lives and other 
Organisation Plan priorities 
Future requirement to be assessed using data from 
web usage statistics - 

• Further based on an 
assessment of 
potential value add 

• Data to be used to 
inform development 
work 

• Business requirements 
drive development 

LOW 

 

A
genda Item

 8
P

age 35



100310_Draft_Web_ Development_ Strategy_v6 
 

 22 

6.3. Getting involved in the online conversation 
•Beyond consultation 
•Customer insight 
•Co-production 
•Recruitment and professional networking 
•Smarter working 
Social media offer a range of online tools that can very effectively support the objectives of services through engagement with 
customers at a time, place and method that the customer has chosen to use. It is an important complimentary communications tool 
to be used in conjunction with established methods. Social media presents the possibility of great opportunity and also the 
potential for risk. The recommendation is that it is approached as a cohesive element of the overall web strategy. More detail on 
recommendations relating to the use of social media is outlined in the social media plan.  
 
 Recommendation Rationale Benefit Priority 
1 It is recommended that a whole organisation view is 

established on the use of social media and that 
interactions are managed in accordance with guidelines 
set out in the social media plan. The communications 
team will produce the plan, with support from a social 
media professional.  
Principally the recommended websites to use for social 
networking are Facebook, Twitter, Youtube, LinkedIn, 
and established online government professional hubs.  
Other social networking tools should also be used as and 
when they compliment these sites. 
In the first instance, these sites will be set up by the 

• Acceptance that 
social media is here 
to stay and that 
opting out is not an 
option 

• There is a strong 
business and 
democratic case for 
using this media 

• A co-ordinated 
whole organization 
approach will be 

• Tried and tested 
approach by 
numerous 
government 
agencies 

• Raises profile of 
well connected, 
customer 
focused 
organisation 

HIGH 

A
genda Item

 8
P

age 36



100310_Draft_Web_ Development_ Strategy_v6 
 

 23 

 Recommendation Rationale Benefit Priority 
communications team, with the support of a social media 
professional, based on research to better understand the 
potential to reach different groups of interest.  
 

most beneficial with 
least risk 

2 
 
 

It is recommended that social networking be used to 
support consultations in reaching customers who have a 
preference for digital channels.    
This approach will be trialed through the emerging 
Sustainable Community Engagement Strategy.  

• Communicating in a 
place and way that 
customers want 

• Trialing and learning 
based on a specific 
requirement 

 

• Low cost 
• Potential to reach 

groups not 
usually involved 
in consultations 

• Potential for 
richer 
conversations 
than is possible 
through 
traditional routes 

HIGH 

3 It is recommended that social media be used to support 
Members as leaders of place through the use of Blogs, 
Webcasts and other tools 

• Effective tools for 
community 
engagement 

• Low cost 
• Potential to reach 

groups not 
usually engaged 

• Potential for 
richer 
conversations 

MEDIU
M 

4 It is recommended that social media is used to support 
in collaboration in the design of services in particular in 

• Effective tool for 
reaching and 

• Low cost 
• Potential to reach 

MEDIU
M 

A
genda Item

 8
P

age 37



100310_Draft_Web_ Development_ Strategy_v6 
 

 24 

 Recommendation Rationale Benefit Priority 
support of the Transforming Peoples Lives Strategy organising large 

group involvement 
groups not 
usually involved 
in consultations 

• Potential for 
richer 
conversations 
than possible 
through 
traditional routes 

5 
 

It is recommended that social media is used to support 
recruitment through the use of government professional 
hubs and sites such as LinkedIn 

• Cost effective tool to 
establish The 
Employer Brand and 
connect with 
talented 
professionals 

• Low cost 
• Raises profile 

with right 
potential 
candidate groups 

• Potential to save 
on advertising in 
hardcopy and 
online 

MEDIU
M 

6 It is recommended that social media is used to support 
smarter working within the organisation. Websites with 
instant chat facilities such as Twitter and webcam 
capability such as Skype could be used to support remote 
working between sites and with partners. Facebook could 
be used to connect more simply with large groups of 

• Supports smarter 
working as work 
force reduced 

• Low cost 
• Simple to set up 

and use 
• Potential to save 

on travel and 
time 

MEDIU
M 

A
genda Item

 8
P

age 38



100310_Draft_Web_ Development_ Strategy_v6 
 

 25 

 Recommendation Rationale Benefit Priority 
partners by interest  • Supports 

partnership 
working 

 

A
genda Item

 8
P

age 39



100310_Draft_Web_ Development_ Strategy_v6 
 

 26 

6.4. Doing it better online 
• Making it simpler using interactive tools 
• Using existing systems & third party sites 
• Integration 
• Innovative thinking 

 
There is a lot of complexity in existing processes that needs to be understood and simplified in order to deliver services better 
online. The technology exists to facilitate innovative approaches without the need for huge investment. Where investment is made 
in online tools the benefit can be realised across many processes. 

 
This area of focus that will result in significant changes to the way the Council does its business online and offers the greatest 
potential in terms of genearating savings.   The well used comparison in costs of face to face, telephone and online processes 
continue to illustrate the powerful business case for using the website for as many transactions as possible and migrating 
customers to use these opportunities wherever possible.  Along with social media, transferring our processes online present great 
opportunities to be innovative about how a service is presented and managed online. The recommended approach is: 

1. To simplify online processes using a range of online tools 
2. Make best use of the ICT available 
3. Integrate processes wherever possible 

A prioritisation process has been established to plan and implement process changes based on ease of implementation, value 
added to the customer and organisation and potential to make cost savings. 
 
 Recommendation Rationale Benefit Priority 
1 Use existing systems and processes established by 

customer services to identify simple enquiries that can 
be resolved online. In particular waste and recycling 

• Processes and 
systems already 
automated 

• Building on 
existing 
experience 

HIGH A
genda Item

 8
P

age 40



100310_Draft_Web_ Development_ Strategy_v6 
 

 27 

 Recommendation Rationale Benefit Priority 
processes currently managed through MVM are 
recommended.  

• Likely to be simpler 
processes to 
implement 

• High volume of 
customer calls 

 

• Will reduce 
avoidable 
contact allowing 
customer 
services to focus 
on managing 
more processes 

• Cost savings 
2 
 
 

Use web technology to integrate processes better from 
front to back office and use the opportunity to remove 
duplication. In particular Council tax, schools 
admissions, benefits and housing.  

• High volume 
transactions 

• Processes with high 
levels of duplication 

• Existing processes 
with significant use 
of paper 

• Release resource  
• Cost savings 

MEDIU
M 

3 Use 3rd party websites where it will save on ICT 
investment and improve customer service. Identify and 
test fit for purpose of sites such as fix my street, they 
work for you and find my nearest 

• Free, simple to use 
and customers are 
using them 

• Meet needs that have 
been identified for 
potential ICT 
development 

• Avoid ICT 
investment 

• Ease of 
implementation 

HIGH 

4 
 

Use the functionality already available in existing 
business systems wherever possible to simplify the 

• These are key 
business 

• Ease of 
implementation 

HIGH 

A
genda Item

 8
P

age 41



100310_Draft_Web_ Development_ Strategy_v6 
 

 28 

 Recommendation Rationale Benefit Priority 
management of processes online. In particular manage 
the branding of internal systems so that web traffic can 
be directed through these seamlessly.  

management 
systems 

• The functionality 
exists already 

• Cost savings 

5 Use the content and functionality of other government 
websites where possible. In particular the planning 
portal, direct gov, NHS sites and other partners 

• Both content and 
functionality already 
exist 

• Customers are using 
these sites in high 
volume 

• Ease of 
implementation 

• Avoid confusion 
and duplication 

• Avoid 
investment 

HIGH 

6 Increase the number of payments made online. In 
particular planning, parking fines, registrations, waste, 
adult social care, leisure centres, adult education and 
highways. 

• Systems in place to 
take online 
payments 
 

• Cost savings 
• Ease of 

implementation 

HIGH 

7 Redefine use of PDFs on the site and make greater use 
of intelligent forms. Review existing forms and identify 
opportunities to simplify and automate workflow into 
the service.  

• Improve accessibility 
• Structure already in 

place 

• Simplify self 
service 

• Cost savings 

HIGH 

8 Develop a cohesive approach to the use of maps to 
simplify the presentation of content both in the context 
of personalization and also individual content 
requirements. In particular for housing, waste, 
highways, planning,   

• Very simple way to 
express complex 
information 

• Becoming a theme on 
many websites and 
also in use of mobile 

• Simplify self 
service 

• Joins up services 

HIGH 

A
genda Item

 8
P

age 42



100310_Draft_Web_ Development_ Strategy_v6 
 

 29 

 Recommendation Rationale Benefit Priority 
technology 

10 Use bookings capability already available in existing 
systems. In particular for registrations, adult social care, 
planning and leisure centres 

• Reduce avoidable 
contact 

• Cost savings MEDIU
M 

11 Develop mobile aps that can be downloaded onto 3G 
phones to allow mobile access to Council services. This 
may be the next step on from the development of an 
approach to maps so that customers can make reports 
based on location whilst on the go. 

• Providing service 
through channel of 
choice to a customer 
group 

• May allow more 
accurate and up to 
date information 
feeds from the public 

• Information  LOW 

12 Develop a customer feedback ratings approach that 
will allow customers to comment on and rate Council 
services. In particular adult social care, highways, 
registrations and adult education 

• Improve customer 
feedback 

• Check out what 
doing well and not 
so well 

• Recommendations 

• Information MEDIU
M 

13 Develop calendars to express key dates. In particular 
term dates and count down to schools admissions 

• Simplify content  • Reduced calls LOW 

14 Develop special applications for specific 
requirements. Consider a tool that will allow the 
current top calls being made to the call centres to drive 
content shown on the home page. Consider the 

• Simplify content 
• Encourage users 

online for a 
previously paper 

• Reduced calls 
• Front and back 

office integration 

MEDIU
M A

genda Item
 8

P
age 43



100310_Draft_Web_ Development_ Strategy_v6 
 

 30 

 Recommendation Rationale Benefit Priority 
development of a comparison tool to encourage the 
whole online admissions process to take place online. 

based process 

15 Develop a feedback mechanism for all highways 
enquiries made online using fixmystreet.com 

• Free 
• Tried and tested at 

other authorities 

• Simple 
established tool 

HIGH 

16 Develop a new section of the site using best practice 
models to express Member related democratic content 

• Supports Members as 
leaders of place 

• Simple access to 
comprehensive 
information 
about Members 

MEDIU
M 

 
 
Approach 
As part of the development of this web strategy a prioritisation process has begun which captures detail about investment, ease of 
implementation, fit with strategic direction, potential value to the customer and savings for the organisation. The detail of that 
process is outlined in the prioritisation spreadsheets that are currently being populated with services. 

A
genda Item

 8
P

age 44



100310_Draft_Web_ Development_ Strategy_v6 
 

 31 

6.5. Bridging the Digital Divide 
• Mapping needs 
• Planning ICT access 
• Assisting ICT learning 
• Libraries 

Whilst the web strategy can meet the needs of the majority who can serve themselves, there are also a significant minority of 
customers who will not be benefiting from the move of services online. Early discussions on how this need can be met suggest a 
close alignment with the Libraries, Customer Services and Transforming Learning Strategies.   
 
 Recommendation Rationale Benefit Priority 
1 Map customer groups with no internet access or usage 

using the Mosaic Total Place customer insight and 
Broadband penetration data 

• Relevant customer 
insight already 
available to provide 
informed starting 
point 

• Ease of 
assessment of 
issue 

MEDIU
M 

2 
 
 

Explore possibilities to offer greater ICT access in 
places where it is not currently available to the public 
for example in schools 

• Resources exist 
• Known to have 

helped access in 
other authorities 

• Ease of 
implementation 

MEDIU
M 

3 Explore possibilities to use adult education courses to 
assist learning in sheltered accommodation and libraries 

• Joining up of Council 
services to help older 
people 

• Ease of 
implementation 

MEDIU
M 

4 
 

Make greater use of libraries to provide internet access • Known to be internet 
access point of 
choice for large 

• Ease of 
implementation 

HIGH A
genda Item

 8
P

age 45



100310_Draft_Web_ Development_ Strategy_v6 
 

 32 

percentage of 
customers 

• Existing service 
 

A
genda Item

 8
P

age 46



100310_Draft_Web_ Development_ Strategy_v6 
 

 33 

7. Invest to save - the financial case 
 
The financial analysis of the web development is based on research with 
internal experts within the Council, reviews of other local authority case 
studies and Government advice and assessments of opportunities to make 
efficiencies. 
 
The web strategy is critical to delivery of the transformation of the Council’s 
services.  The benefits of using the online channel are not limited to a single 
area, but are anticipated to be evident across the entire Council.  Rather than 
seeking to ring fence savings to a corporate account, it is therefore proposed 
that savings be accounted for within service areas. 
 
In order to unlock these savings most efficiently we recommend that all 
services are required to identify where the use of web capability will deliver 
savings within their service. To avoid double accounting the Efficiencies 
Board will capture these savings centrally.   
 
7.1 Assumptions 
Implementation of the strategy will be phased, based on prioritisation criteria 
that assess size of cost saving, ease of implementation, customer benefit and 
fit with strategic objectives. 
  
It is assumed that it will take 6 to 12 months from the date of going live with 
any one element of the strategy to begin to realise the benefits. This is to take 
account of the time lag between and service being made available, customers 
becoming aware and use being made of it. 
 
For this reason the invest to save business case begins to count savings from 
year 2 after implementation. 
 
It is assumed that the skills and capacity to implement the ICT elements of the 
strategy are currently not available within the service and that investment 
will be needed to fulfill this requirement. 
 
In order to maintain momentum and achieve benefits in both the short and 
long term it is envisaged that the strategy will be developed alongside the 
existing website. Each new element will become available incrementally 
rather than through a launch of all new elements on a given date. 
 

Agenda Item 8
Page 47



100310_Draft_Web_ Development_ Strategy_v6 
 

 34 

 
7.2 Identified Savings 
The project team has estimated savings of up to £2.5m over 5 years through 
the implementation of the web strategy. 
 

Saving basis Estimated 
Value 

Timescale to 
implement 
relevant 
elements of 
the strategy 

Expected 
year of 
realisation 
of benefits 

1. Channel switch from face to face and phone 
to web 

£1.4m 1 year Years 2-5 

2. Process re-engineering and reduction in 
duplication of effort through automation of 
manual processes  

£1m 2 years Years 3-5 

3. Reduced spend on marketing, recruitment, 
consultations and adhoc micro sites 

£50,000 1 year Years 2-5 

4. Smarter working resulting in savings in 
travel expenses 

£50,000 2 years Years 3-5 

5.Income from selling elements of the strategy 
to other authorities 

Unknown  Years 3-5 

Total £2.5m   
 
These estimates are based on the following assessment 
 

1. Channel switch  
a. Baseline figures that are widely used for interactions by channel 

are telephone costs per transaction  = £4.00, face to face costs per 
transaction  =  £7.80 and web costs per transaction  = 17p 

b. An assessment of 6 Central Bedfordshire Council processes 
netted a saving of £632,000 over a 5 year period. This was based 
on the following estimated switch rate from another channel: 0% 
in year 1, 15% in year 2, 30% in year 3, 45% in year 4 and 60% in 
year 5.  

c. The £1.4m saving target is based on the moving the top 20% of 
high volume processes online. For example, all Waste enquiries, 
some Revenues and Benefits processes, Registration and Adult 
Social Care. 

 
2. Process re-engineering and front and back office integration 

a. Research by EzGov Europe estimates that for every £1 of saving 
that is made in the front office a further £8 saving can be made 

Agenda Item 8
Page 48



100310_Draft_Web_ Development_ Strategy_v6 
 

 35 

in the back office when the two are fully integrated.   This level 
of saving is most likely to be generated from the largely paper 
based services in revenues and benefits, education, transport 
and social care where automation of processes is least 
developed. For example, benefits claims, blue badge 
applications, and school admissions applications. 

b. The Treasury Operational Efficiency Programme estimates that 
20%- 30% can be saved through business process engineering of 
the public sector back office when benchmarked against the 
private sector. A key element in that re-engineering will be the 
cost effective use of web technology. 

 
3. Reduced marketing, recruitment and consultations costs 

a. HR have estimated that use of a range of online tools will reduce 
the HR marketing spend by 25% 

b. The Publications Review estimates that £10,000 can be saved by 
making documentation available digitally rather than in 
hardcopy. 

c. There are approximately 30 Council micro sites in existence that 
attract maintenance charges of an estimated £10,000 per year. 
Further spending on new micro sites will also be avoided at an 
estimate of £3,000 per site.  

 

Agenda Item 8
Page 49



100310_Draft_Web_ Development_ Strategy_v6 
 

 36 

7.3 Investment  
To implement the web strategy the following investments are required: 
 
Capital Costs 
Strategy Pillar Brief Description Estimated Cost 
Getting the basics right Re-development and design of web platform £30,000 
Doing it better online Development and design of web tools to 

include maps, calendars, multimedia, 
specific applications, ratings and bookings 

£100,000 

Doing it better online Integration with back office for key 
processes 

£100,000 

Doing it better online Purchase of Civica module to support online 
processing of benefits payments 

£75,000 

Personalising Association of content based on location and 
life stage 

£30,000 

Bridging the digital divide Making ICT available to non-internet users Further research required 
Project management of 
implementation  

Over 2 years £100,000 

Marketing Telling customers about online services split 
60/40 over 2 years 

£80,000 

Total Investment  £515,000 

 
*All costs calculated over 2 year implementation period 
 
7.4 Recurring costs per annum 
Cost Brief description Value 
System licences Licences for Tridion or equivalent CMS, and Civica 

Benefits Module  
£30,000 

Maintenance Updates and amendments to the site that require a 
developer 

£15,000 

Hosting Hosted by the Council £0.00 
Total  £45,000 

 
7.5 Summary 
Investment £515,000 over 2 years 
Saving £2.5m over 5 years 
Recurring costs £45,000 per annum 
 
 

Agenda Item 8
Page 50



100310_Draft_Web_ Development_ Strategy_v6 
 

 37 

8. The Project Management Case 
On approval of this strategy it is estimated that this project will take 2 years to 
implement in its entirety. 
A system of prioritisation has been established and work is underway to 
identify the project priorities against agreed criteria. The team will have 
project plans in place and be ready to begin work on implementation within 4 
weeks of approval of the strategy, excluding any procurement process.  
 
The project will be structured around the 5 pillars of the strategy and work 
will be undertaken on each area of focus simultaneously. Each pillar will 
require internal resource and skills both for the project team and also as 
extended work teams within the relevant service. These will change over the 
life of the project dependent on the recommendation that is being 
implemented. 
 
The project will plan for an incremental implementation that will see elements 
of the strategy going live as and when they are ready. A sign off process will 
be established to ensure that each element is thoroughly tested and approved 
before being published to the public. 
 
A project board will be established to oversee progress. 
 
9. Measures of Success 
The project itself will be monitored and measured against agreed milestones 
using standard project management tools. 
 
The strategy recommendations will be measured using a balanced scorecard 
approach based on benefits to the Customer, Financial Savings, Community 
Engagement and support of Staff in their jobs. 
 
 
 
 

Agenda Item 8
Page 51



Page 52

This page is intentionally left blank


	Agenda
	3 Minutes
	8 Web Development Strategy
	App1 Draft Web Development Strategy v6


